
West Devon Development 
Management and Licensing 
Committee

Title: Agenda
Date: Tuesday, 20th April, 2021

Time: 9.30 am

Venue: TEAMS Meeting

Full Members: Chairman Cllr Yelland
Vice Chairman Cllr Pearce

Members: Cllr Cheadle
Cllr Crozier
Cllr Hipsey
Cllr Mott

Cllr Moyse
Cllr Ratcliffe
Cllr Renders
Cllr Vachon

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Committee 
administrator:

Kathy Hoare Senior Case Manager - Democratic Services

Public Document Pack



Page No

1.  Apologies for Absence 

2.  Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal or disclosable 
pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such 
interests they may have in any items to be considered at this 
meeting.

[If Councillors have any questions relating to predetermination, 
bias or interests in items on this Agenda, then please contact the 
Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting] 

3.  Items Requiring Urgent Attention

To consider those items which, in the opinion of the Chairman, 
should be considered by the Meeting as matters of urgency (if 
any).  

4.  Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 6

Meeting held on 23 March 2021

5.  Planning Applications 7 - 18

To see Letters of Representation and further supplementary 
information relating to any of the planning applications on the 
agenda, please select the following link and enter the relevant 
Reference number: http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding

WARD NAME Tavistock South East
APPLICATION NUMBER                                     4205/19/HHO
LOCATION 11a Mount Tavy Road, 

Tavistock.
DEVELOPMENT READVERTISEMENT (revised 

plans received) Retrospective 
householder application for 
enlargement of patio area

6.  Planning Appeals Update 19 - 20

7.  Undetermined Major Applications Report 21 - 22

http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding


At a Meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & LICENSING 
COMMITTEE held via Teams on TUESDAY the 23rd day of March 
2021 at 9:30am 

 
 

Present:   Cllr J Yelland – Chairman 
    Cllr T G Pearce – Vice Chairman 
         
 Cllr R Cheadle            Cllr P Crozier   
 Cllr S Hipsey   Cllr C Mott    
 Cllr D E Moyse  Cllr B Ratcliffe   
 Cllr M Renders  Cllr P Vachon  

    
Head of Development Management (PW) 
Senior Specialist, Development Management (AHS) 
Planning Case Officer (JH) 
Solicitor (BF) 
Democratic Services Manager (DW) 
Specialist Democratic Services (JY) 
Senior Case Officer, Democratic Services (KH)    
South West Highways Officer (PT) 

 
 
 
*DM&L 54     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
                      There were no apologies forwarded to this Meeting. 
 
 
*DM&L 55 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business 
to be considered and the following were made: 
 

                       
Cllr T G Pearce declared a personal interest in all applications by virtue 
of being a Member of the Devon Building Control Partnership and 
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon. 
Cllr P Crozier declared the applicant for application 0016/20/OPA was 
a resident in his Ward and was known to him but it would not affect his 
decision on the application. 
 

 
*DM&L 56 URGENT BUSINESS 
  There was no urgent business brought forward to this Meeting. 
 
 
*DM&L 57 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Development Management and Licensing 
Committee Meeting held on 16th February 2021 were confirmed as a 
correct record. 

 
 
*DM&L 58 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 
                      

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



The Committee proceeded to consider the application(s) that had been 
prepared by the Development Management Specialists and considered 
also the comments of the Town and Parish Councils together with other 
representations received, which were listed within the presented 
agenda report and summarised below, and RESOLVED that: 

      
(a) Application No: 3424/19/FUL       Ward: Bere Ferrers 

 
Site Address: “Field at SX453 669, adjacent to Woolacombe 
Road” Bere Alston. 

                              
                            Development: READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received)   
                            Application for 31no. new dwellings and associated access  
                            road and pedestrian link. 
 

This application was deferred at the previous DM&L Committee 
in order to investigate the two junctions (Collytown Cross and the 
junction between The Down and the B3527). Other matters raised 
at that meeting including solar panels, road surfacing and lighting 
have been addressed. 
The Planning Officer confirmed since the last meeting further letters 
of representation had been received, however they were regarding 
issues already raised.  
 
Speakers included: 
  
Objector – Mr Graham Reed 
Parish Council Representative – Cllr R Musgrave 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation: Delegate to Head of 
Practice Lead Development Management, in conjunction with 
Chairman to conditionally grant planning permission, subject to a 
Section 106 legal obligation, for the following contributions towards: 
- DCC Education -£16,830.00 - OSSR: Off-site Play Contribution of 
£20,073.60, towards improvements to, and on-going maintenance 
of, play facilities at the Recreation Ground and/or the Parish Hall 
and/or Underways at the discretion of the Council Off-site Sports 
Contribution of £25,835, towards improvements to, and on-going 
maintenance of, the changing rooms at the Recreation Field, static 
exercise equipment in the village of Bere Alston and improvements 
to the basketball area behind the village hall. - Affordable Housing 
- 9 units. Plots 13, 24 and 27 shared ownership and plots 25, 26, 
28, 29,30 and 31 social rented units - Tamar Estuary Special Area 
of Conservation £14,597.73. - Movement of the 30 mph sign 70 
metres to the south east of the site entrance. £5000.00 to carry out 
the TRO. Conditions (list not in full)  
1. Time limit  
2. Accord with plans  
3. Materials to be agreed before development proceeds beyond 
slab level.  
4. Full details of the hard and soft landscaping of the public open 
space, including play equipment , fencing, surfacing, bins and 
benches.  
5. Archaeological scheme of investigation  
6. Unexpected contamination  

Page 2



7. No commencement until details of access road; ironwork; site 
compound  
8. No occupation until cul de sac carriageway including turning 
head has been laid out and kerbed, drained and constructed; 
footways have been provided; visibility splays have been laid out; 
street lighting for the spine road has been erected where 
appropriate (based on ecology constraints) ; car parking has been 
completed.  
9. Once constructed the carriageway, turning head, footways and 
footpaths shall be maintained.  
10. No external lighting shall be erected on the site until the type, 
direction and lux level of that lighting being first submitted to and 
agreed by the Local Planning Authority.  
11. Construction management plan  
12. PD removal for sheds, hard surfaces, in the rear garden to 
protect the net gain in biodiversity  
13. Drainage condition  
14. Prior to occupation, details of the proposed garden gates shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority  
15. Prior to occupation of Plots 17, 22 and 11 the route through shall 
be completed and open for pedestrians to use.  
16. Details of the planting for northern hedge shall be submitted to 
and agreed by the LPA prior to commencement beyond slab level 
and planting shall be implemented in the next available planting 
season  
17 The open space in the middle of the site shall be retained as 
open space and shall not be used for any other purpose without the 
prior written consent of the local planning authority.  
18. Hedge protection details.  
19 Hedge retention.  
20 Prior to their installation details of the boundary treatments shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
21. LEMP  
22. Development to be in accordance with Energy Statement  
23. Development to be carried out in accordance with the 
Goetechnical / geoenvironmental report  
24 Development to be in accordance with the biodiversity report. 
 
 
  
During discussion, the following points were raised: 
 

 
 The solicitor believed the Neighbour Plan was considered in 

the report and officers made an assessment with reason. 
The NP showed that an access onto Woolacombe was 
identified as an acceptable alternative. 

 Concerns over current busy use of Woolacombe Road. 
 

COMMITTEE DECISION: REFUSED  
                            
                           Policy’s H2 and T3 in the Bere Peninsula Neighbourhood Plan    
                          identify a preference for the access to this allocated site being off the  
                          B3257 road. The application has not sufficiently demonstrated that  
                         the use of the preferred access is not feasible, and the proposal is Page 3



                         therefore in contravention of Policies H2 and T3 of the Plan. As such  
                         the proposal also fails to meet Policy DEV29.1 and DEV29.2 in the  
                         Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

(b) Application No: 2672/20/HHO     Ward: Tavistock North 
 
Site Address: 31, Glanville Road, Tavistock. 
 
Development: Householder application for proposed ground 
floor extension to dwelling house and replacement garage 
roof. 

 
Speakers included: 

  
Applicant – Claire Pearce 
Town Councillor – Cllr Graham Parker 
Local Ward Member – Cllr Jeff Moody 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 
                          Conditions: 

 
1. Standard time limit 
2. Adherence to plans  
3. Samples of materials 
4. Unexpected contaminated land 
5. Sample of the slate or stone to be used on the parapet 

 
                           During discussions the following points were made: 
 

 Heritage Impacts Assessments should be made 
compulsory rather than a choice on future applications 
within a Conservation Area. This will be amended in the 
future planning review .The Committee were advised they 
could ask for an impact assessment if they felt they had 
insufficient information to determine the application before 
them. 

 That details of the coping above slab level to be agreed as 
a condition 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Approval 
Subject to the above conditions and details of the coping to be  
agreed above slab level. 
 

        
 

              (C) Application No. 0016/20/OPA     Ward: Milton Ford  
  
                   Site Address: Land to the rear of Edgcumbe Terrace, Edgecumbe  
                   Road, Milton Abbot. Page 4



 
                   Development: READVERTISMENT (Revised plans received and   
                   Amended development description) Outline application with all  
                   matters reserved except access and siting for the erection of 5  
                   dwellings (Resubmission of 0889/19/OPA). 
  
                   Speakers included: 
 
                    Objector – Mr Richard Allen 
                    Agent  -     Mr Ed Persse 
                    Ward Member – Cllr Neil Jory 
 
                    RECOMMENDATION: Refusal 
 

1. The proposal is not considered to constitute sustainable 
development in that it is tandem backland development which fails 
to have proper regard to local character and the development 
context of the village, contrary to the good design aims of the NPPF, 
JLP Policies SPT1, TTV2, TTV25, DEV10 and DEV20 of the 
Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan and the JLP 
Supplementary Planning Document.  

2. The proposal is considered to be an unneighbourly form of 
development, likely to result in a loss of privacy and overlooking to 
the existing dwellings in Edgcumbe Terrace, contrary to the aims of 
the NPPF in relation to good design, particularly (but not limited to) 
section 12, DEV1, DEV10 and DEV20 of the Plymouth and South 
West Devon Joint Local Plan and Appendix 1 of the SPD.  

3. The proposal fails to demonstrate that adequate methods of surface  
water drainage can be provided and maintained through the lifetime 
of the development, contrary to section 14 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework, Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local 
Plan Policy DEV35, and DEV35.4 of the JLP Supplementary 
Planning Document.  

4. The development fails to demonstrate that there would not be harm  
to the setting of heritage assets including the Grade 1 listed church 
and the conservation area, or that a very low level of harm would be 
outweighed by demonstrable public benefit, contrary to the National 
Planning Policy Framework, particularly paragraphs 193, 194, 195 
and 196 and DEV21 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan. 

                     
 
                    COMMITTEE DECISION: Refusal 
 
*DM&L 59 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

The Head of Development Management updated the Members on each 
of the outstanding planning appeals.   
 

 
*DM&L 60 UNDETERMINED MAJOR APPLICATIONS REPORT 

The Head of Development Management updated the Members on each 
of the undetermined Major applications. 
 
 

 
Page 5



 
(The Meeting terminated at 1.55pm ) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

Page 6



PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT  
 
Case Officer: Cheryl Stansbury                  Parish:  Tavistock   Ward:  Tavistock South East 
 
Application No:  4205/19/HHO 
 

 

Agent/Applicant: 
Mr R Lezemore 
11A Mount Tavy Road 
Tavistock 
PL19 9JB 

 

Applicant: 
Mr R Lezemore 
11A Mount Tavy Road 
PL19 9JB 
 

Site Address:    11a Mount Tavy Road, Tavistock, PL19 9JB 
 
Development:  READVERTISEMENT (revised plans received) Retrospective 
householder application for enlargement of patio area  
 

 
 
 

Reason item is being put before Committee: At the request of the Ward Members based on 
the following concerns:  
 
• The impact on the visual amenity of the neighbouring properties and the area itself 

(Dev10 of the JLP, noting this is also the position of Tavistock Town Council). 
• The impact on the heritage amenity of the conservation area. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
Recommendation: Conditional Approval 
 
Conditions:  

1. Adherence to plans 
2. Obscure glazed screen/fence on west side elevation of patio to be installed within 3 

months of decision 
3. Install drainage within 3 months of decision 

 
Informative: 

1. Avoidance of doubt – proposal only relates to rear patio area, not works to the dwelling/parking 
area 

2. This decision does not negate the need to secure appropriate third party consents (Building 
Regulations, EA consent or SWW approval) 

 
 
Key issues for consideration: 

 Principle of development 

 Design/Impact on character of the area 

 Neighbour impact 

 Drainage/flood risk 
 
 
Site Description: 
The application site is located in Tavistock, in the Conservation Area and World Heritage Site. 
It comprises a recently renovated bungalow, the rear garden of which backs onto the river; the 
site is in Flood Zone 3. 
 
The Proposal: 
This retrospective proposal is for a cantilevered timber-deck patio area with glass balustrading 
around the riverside perimeter. Consent was previously been granted under application 
0990/19/HHO for various works to the dwelling and included the enlargement of an existing 
rear patio with a gabion basket structure underneath; glazed screening was proposed facing 
the river, similar to that in place now. This application enlarged the patio almost to the edge of 
the property boundary, approximately 4.4 m from the rear wall of the dwelling, but the patio 
was not constructed in accordance with the drawings. Instead, the structure subject to this 
application was constructed. The deck measures approximately 10.5 m wide, projecting 6.4m 
from the rear elevation of the dwelling; it overhangs the river by between 1.39 and 1.76m. 
 
Accordingly, the decking, as it exists, extends the patio shown in 0990/19/HHO by just under 
2m. It is worth noting that the patio shown on that application would have fallen under permitted 
development, not requiring planning permission. The decking now subject to this application 
requires permission by virtue of the cantilever over the river and because a small section of it 
sits between the side wall of the property and its boundaries. 
 
Consultations: 
 
WDBC Conservation Officer: The River Tavy is identified as a ‘key characteristic’ of the town 
in the adopted 2008 Conservation Area (CA) Appraisal (CAA), referenced throughout as a 
feature of great significance in the development of the town and its special character. The CA 
was enlarged at the time of the CAA to include more of the river as acknowledgement of this 
significance. 

Page 8



 
The CA Management Plan states in Section 7.3 (‘The Control of New Development’):-  
- The scale and form of new development should follow established historic precedents  
- New development should be sympathetic to the surrounding historic buildings in terms 
of uses, materials and details 
 
Consideration of S72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 is a 
fundamental requirement - ‘special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of that area’. In addition NPPF 200 and 201 apply. 
 
Although the decking is not prominently visible from public vantage points, it fails to either 
preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the CA. Whilst the enjoyment of the river 
from gardens is well established, it is mostly done from the river bank and on a scale that is 
proportionate to reasonable domestic use; the general appearance is of relatively minimal 
structures and interventions which read as typical of what would be expected in a garden. 
 
The scale of this deck and the fact that it is cantilevered out over the river is exceptional and 
inconsistent with the natural character of the river frontage, which is in itself a positive feature 
of the CA. The size of the area enclosed and the materials used makes the structure an 
intervention that can only be considered to cause harm to the CA. 
 
The development does not directly affect features of the WHS that have Outstanding Universal 
Value (OUV) attributes. The setting of the listed Dolvin Road Cottages would not be harmed 
but the unlisted (CA and WHS positive) Bedford cottages either side of the site would be slightly 
affected. The houses on Parkwood Road opposite the site are of some interest in WHS terms 
and the structure is likely visible from the gardens, but this would not constitute harm to OUV. 
This part of the river did not contribute directly to industrial activity, despite nearby foundry sites 
and impacts on the CA are of greater concern in this instance. 
 
The site has the potential to be visible from Vigo Bridge (grade II) if intervening planting were 
to be removed. Without this screening some level of harm would be likely to its setting. 
 
As there is ‘less than substantial harm’ to the designated heritage asset of the CA, NPPF 196  
applies. There is no public benefit to balance the harm and it would be entirely possible to have 
a modest structure to facilitate appreciation of the river from the bank without harm.  
 
County Highways Authority: No highways implication  
 
South West Water: No objection in relation to surface water. We have not received an 
application from the owner for consent to be building over the public network 
 
Environment Agency: Most recent response 30/03/2021: The surface water outfall which is 
proposed to be constructed through the riverside wall will need a Flood Risk Activity Permit 
from us prior to the works commencing. 
 
The construction of the outfall will require part of the wall to be removed for the pipe to be 
located and we need to be assured that the wall will be reconstructed to an acceptable standard 
as part of these works.  
 
Consideration should be given to positioning the outfall pipe close to the existing steps to help 
prevent turbulence occurring around the pipe during high flow conditions. 
 

Page 9



18/12/2020: Our position remains as previously set out in our letter to you dated 25 June 2020, 
which was, if you are minded to approve this application, we would not maintain an objection 
because, in this particular instance, we consider that the proposal will not increase flood risk 
and will be an improvement on the previously approved plans which appear to show gabions 
in the river channel.  
 
However, we would like to add that we consider that the revised plans do not represent the 
true profile of the river bank. 
 
The revised site and block plan 13C shows the river bank sloping down with its toe to be in 
alignment to the front face of the patio. In reality the river bank appears generally vertical along 
this section of river, as can be seen in the photos. 
 
The revised plan 14 Cross sections appears to show the existing gabion steps possibly 
extending further into the river channel than is the case. We recommend that the planning 
officer checks this detail. 
 
25/06/2020: We would normally object to an application which involves encroachment over the 
main river, because such development can result in an increase in flood risk and restrict access 
to the river for essential/emergency maintenance. However, as explained in our letter of 17 
April, we previously discussed compromise with the applicant, which would ensure that gabions 
are not placed in the river channel (as was proposed in 0990/19/HHO). Therefore, if you are 
minded to approve this application, we would not maintain an objection because, in this 
particular instance, we consider that the proposal will not increase flood risk and will be an 
improvement on the previously approved plans which show gabions in the river channel.  
 
One of our officers met with the applicant at 11a Mount Tavy Road on 16 July 2019 to discuss 
the proposed installation of gabions in front of the existing river bank to enable a patio 
extension, which had been granted permission under 0990/19/HHO. The applicant informed 
our officer that the permission included a row of gabions to be placed in front of the existing 
river bank/wall; 0990/19/HHO includes the following description: “enlargement of the patio area 
towards the river with gabion basket substructure and glass handrail”.  
 
We informed the applicant that we would not accept gabions being placed in the river channel 
due to the negative impacts they could have regarding their potential to destabilise the 
adjoining riverside wall on the neighbouring property. The applicant indicated that the proposed 
gabions, which he considered formed part of the planning permission, would extend out no 
more than where the steps/informal walkway were located in front of the existing riverside wall. 
This is a distance of approximately 800mm.  
 
After further discussions a compromise was reached whereby we accepted ‘in principle’ a 
‘decking type structure’ installed on top of the river bank, provided it did not project any further 
beyond the line of the existing river bank/wall than the concrete steps (~800mm) and was in 
accordance with the extent of the patio area shown on the planning permission already granted. 
We accepted this as a compromise to enable what was considered at the time to be a valid 
planning permission to be carried out.  
 
There seems to have been some confusion regarding the interpretation of the previously 
approved drawings. It now appears that the permission did not include any enlargement of the 
patio area towards/over the river as the decking/patio area has now been confirmed as 
extending 1927mm beyond that which was granted planning permission under: 0990/19/HHO. 
However, the photos indicate that the decking appears to extend just beyond the general 

Page 10



alignment of the concrete steps/informal footway over the river channel. As we mentioned in 
our previous response, we are satisfied that this decking/patio area will not result in an increase 
in flood risk in this particular location.  
 
However, we would like to reiterate, we would usually object to any structure of this type which 
encroaches into, or over a river channel. This type of structure could cause flooding issues if it 
was in a different location for example if it was on the outside of a meander where the river 
was narrower or its banks lower. Our officer’s discussions/comments on site were based on 
the assumption, and advice given by the applicant, that planning permission had been granted 
for the gabions/patio extension into the river. If we had known at the time that the permission 
did not permit any extension of the patio area into the river beyond the existing alignment of 
the river bank, we would not have come to our compromise position regarding the decking. 
 
17/04/2020: Given the extant permission, we would not object to this application provided you 
are satisfied the decking would not extend beyond the line shown in the approved plans. If this 
is the case, we consider the current application (4205/19/HHO) to be an improvement to the 
extant permission which included gabions in the River Tavy; we do not support the installation 
of gabions in the river channel. 
 
However, we want to make it clear that we would normally object to this type of development 
and would not support any further developments of this kind which extend over the river 
channel due to the potential risk of debris impact/damage and the general principle of not 
encroaching in/over a watercourse corridor.  
 
We would usually object to this type of development due to the principle of a structure 
encroaching over the edge of the river channel and the precedent it might set for others to do 
the same. However, 0990/19/HHO was granted in April 2019 for a patio extension towards the 
river in which the permitted plans show gabions were to be placed into the River Tavy in front 
of the existing river bank to enable this extension. A glass handrail was proposed on the patio 
extension (as in this retrospective application). We did not have sight of the previous application 
0990/19/HHO so were unable to provide comments at the time. 
 
We would have objected to the installation of the gabions within the river channel due to the 
negative impacts they could have had regarding their potential to destabilise the adjoining 
riverside wall on the neighbouring property. During high river flows, turbulence would have 
occurred on the downstream end of the gabions thereby putting strain on the neighbouring wall 
which shows signs of a previous partial collapse close to the boundary with this property. 
 
The property owner at 11A Mount Tavy road contacted us after the previous permission for the 
patio extension was granted. We attended site and were surprised to see that the river bank 
was not as was shown on the drawings (i.e. no existing gabions appeared to be present). The 
river bank comprised of a wall made of river sourced stone (as is common in Tavistock). There 
were some concrete steps leading from the garden onto an informal walkway raised above 
surrounding river bed levels, both of which appeared to extend approximately 0.8m out onto 
the river bed. The property owner indicated that the proposed gabions, which formed part of 
the permission already granted, would extend out approximately to this distance (0.8m) where 
the steps/informal walkway were located. 
 
We informed the owner we would not permit gabions to be placed into the river channel in front 
of his wall because of the risk to the integrity of their neighbour’s wall.  After discussing the 
situation, a compromise was reached in that a decking type of structure set on top of the river 
bank would be acceptable to us, provided that it was compliant with the previous permission 

Page 11



(0990/19/HHO) granted in respect of the patio extension (i.e. that it would not extend towards 
the river channel any further beyond the existing garden area than that shown on the approved 
plans). This design would enable the property owner to achieve his aims of extending the patio 
and remove the risk of potential damage to neighbouring river bank wall by the omission of the 
gabions from the design. 
 
It is unclear if the current decking extends beyond the line shown in the plans previously 
approved and referenced in 0990/19/HHO. We would advise you to determine whether this is 
the case before determining the application.  
 
We point out that there is a risk of damage to the current structure from debris impact during 
high floods. However, most large floating debris is likely to be directed across the other side of 
the river channel where the flows would likely be greater, on the outside of the long bend). 
 
Tavistock Town Council: 21st December 2020: Object on the same basis as the previous 
objection, which remains unchanged; 
 
• Harm to visual amenity of the neighbourhood 
• Harmful impact on immediate neighbours 
• The above contrary to Policy DEV10.  
 
26 February 2020: Object. Harm to visual amenity of the neighbourhood; harmful impact on 
immediate neighbours; contrary to policy DEV10. 
 
Representations from Residents 
 
Several letters of objection from one individual have been received. Issues raised are 
summarised as follows: 
 

- Inaccurate plans 
- Design and visual appearance 
- Scale of the decking 
- Impact on Conservation Area 
- Impact on World Heritage Site 
- Drainage and flooding 
- Wildlife 
- Loss of privacy/overlooking 
- Enlargement from previous approval 
- Conflict with SWW mains sewer 

 
Relevant Planning History 
3969/20/HHO - Retrospective application for external works to dwelling not in accordance with 
0990/19/HHO. Pending 
 
2068/20/CLE - Lawful development certificate for existing use of outbuilding as model railway 
retail shop. Refused 18/12/2020 
 
0094/20/FUL - Alterations to building and creation of new vehicular access and hardsurfacing 
of forecourt. Pending 
 

Page 12



0990/19/HHO - Householder application for changes to external appearance with new location 
of front door and infilling of garage door opening, enlargement of the patio area towards the 
river with gabion basket substructure and glass handrail. Approved 04/06/2019 
 
11857/2008/TAV - Change of use of shop to ancillary residential accommodation. Approved 
09/06/2008 
 
2526/2002/TAV - Change of use of part retail unit to use for domestic purposes in association 
with adjacent domestic dwelling. Approved 25/02/2002 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Principle of Development: 
 
The principle of works to a dwelling within the main towns is accepted by virtue of Policies 
SPT1, SPT2 and TTV1 in the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan, subject to the 
proposal meeting all other policies within the JLP.  
 
Design/character of the Area: 
 
The proposal comprises a timber deck, cantilevered to give the appearance of a ‘floating’ 
platform that overhangs the river with the timber decking sitting on steel supports.  
 
It is surrounded by a fixed, transparent glazed safety screen/balustrading, which maintains the 
illusion of the rear of the property being kept open. Other nearby neighbouring properties have 
left the end of their gardens unfenced in order to overlook the river and a range of garden 
structures and patios are visible along the river bank. Although the cantilevered decked area 
protrudes out over the river bank, beyond the extent of the original garden, it is considered that 
the ‘floating’ structure is an improvement on the more solid and clumsy appearance of gabion 
baskets that were previously approved. The modern materials and design of the transparent 
glass balustrading is honest and is considered to create an open aspect to the rear of the site.  
 
Concerns have been raised regarding the appearance of the structure and its visual impact on 
the surrounding area, being in the Conservation area and World Heritage Site (WHS). The 
structure is not visible from Mount Tavy Road or any nearby public vantage points, including 
both bridges, due to intervening buildings or vegetation, but it can be viewed from the rear 
gardens of properties on the other side of the river bank along Parkwood Road.  
 
Local Planning Authorities are required, by virtue of Section 72 of the Planning Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Area Act 1990, to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of Conservation Areas. This requires a judgment 
(informed by an understanding of the significance of the historic asset represented by the 
Conservation Area) of the effect of the proposal on the conservation area’s ‘character or 
appearance’. Character or appearance’ is not confined just to the historic built fabric of the 
area, but extends to non-visual matters. The assessment of likely harm to a conservation area 
is a matter of planning judgment. The factors to be taken into account in the assessment of 
whether the proposed development preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the 
Conservation Area will include the nature, scale and siting of the proposed development, its 
proximity and likely visual relationship to the conservation area, the historic characteristics of 
the conservation area itself and which have a bearing on its value and appreciation, local 
topography and the presence of other features – both natural and man-made – in the landscape 

Page 13



or townscape.  Ultimately, what factors are relevant will depend upon the particular facts and 
circumstances of the particular application.   
 
Once harm has been identified however, there is a strong presumption against the grant of 
planning permission, though, in exceptional cases the presumption may be overridden in 
favour of development which is desirable on the ground of some other public interest’. 
Accordingly the harm has to be given considerable importance and weight.   
 
In relation to the World Heritage Site the NPPF 2019 states: The National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) defines a World Heritage Site as a designated heritage asset and therefore 
weight should be given to its conservation and development that results in substantial harm or 
loss to the site should be avoided wherever possible.  
 
The dwelling itself is of modern appearance, having a neutral contribution towards the WHS 
and the Conservation Area. 
 
As set out above, the Conservation Officer has objected to the proposal, noting that whilst the 
decking is not prominently visible from public vantage points, in fact the Case Officer has not 
been able to find any public vantage points form where it can be seen, it does not preserve or 
enhance the character or appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
Noting that many properties which back onto the river have various forms of seating and 
structures from which to enjoy the riverside setting, including the immediately adjoining 
property which has a timber summerhouse in its rear garden, these are not of the scale and 
form of the cantilevered decking.  
 
It is noted that the Conservation Area Management Plan states that new development should 
follow established historic precedents in terms of scale and form, and be sympathetic to 
surrounding historic buildings in terms of uses, materials and details. 
 
It could be argued that there are no modern structures in the immediate area, and nothing 
cantilevered over the river, therefore this structure is “out of keeping”, however, Officers do not 
feel that in itself is reason to refuse this application. The decking, by virtue of it being 
cantilevered, is a large structure, however, it appears stark because it is new. It will weather 
over time and the provision of clear glass screening gives a more lightweight appearance than 
a timber structure would; it also enables views back into the site. 
 
Officers agree with the Conservation Officer in that the development does not directly affect 
features of the World Heritage Site that have Outstanding Universal Value attributes.  
 
It is worth considering what could be erected on site under permitted development, as a “fall 
back”, which could be a smaller patio that did not sit over the river. The applicants could build 
up to the river edge, and that could be bounded by a much more solid timber enclosure. This 
potentially could have more visual impact than that subject to this application and the Council 
would have no control over it. There would also be no way to secure the enhanced drainage 
works that are part of this application. 
 
On balance, whilst the design and materials cannot be said to be “traditional”, the scale of the 
proposal, its materials and that a similar (albeit smaller) structure could be erected under 
permitted development, and that it is well screened from public vantage points leads so 
notwithstanding the view of the Conservation Officer, Officers to conclude there is no harm to 
the Conservation Area. Subject to conditions, the development is considered acceptable in 

Page 14



relation to its surroundings and the setting of the Conservation Area in compliance with the 
NPPF and JLP Policy DEV20.  
 
Neighbour Amenity: 
 
The neighbouring property, 11 Mount Tavy Road, has raised an objection to the proposal in 
terms of it being overbearing and causing a loss of privacy. 
 
It is considered that the current development, with clear glass balustrading on the west side 
elevation of the patio results in some additional overlooking into the rear garden of 11 Mount 
Tavy Road above that which would have taken place prior to its installation. It is considered 
that this could be adequately addressed through the installation of a 1.8m high obscure glazed 
screen or an extension to the existing fence along the west side elevation of the patio. This 
would prevent views back into the neighbouring garden and also not impact negatively upon 
enjoyment of that garden. A condition is therefore imposed for details to be agreed and the 
screen/fence erected within 3 months of any approval. 
 
With the benefit of this condition the proposal is considered to have an acceptable impact on 
the privacy and amenity of adjacent occupiers in accordance with Policy DEV1 of the JLP.       
 
Drainage and Flood Risk: 
 
Whilst concern has been raised by the Environment Agency, as set out in their consultation 
responses, following a site visit and clarification on the proposal they have reached a 
compromise with the applicant and confirmed they have no objection from a flood risk 
perspective, given the current proposal is seen an improvement over that which was previously 
approved, which showed gabion baskets in the river.  
 
In terms of drainage, prior to constructing the deck, there was no formal drainage scheme in 
place; water just dispersed naturally towards and through the river bank. A lot of discussion 
has taken place in order to satisfy the Council’s drainage specialists that the decking would not 
destabilise the river bank whether through increased run-off or from the weight of the structure 
upon the bank itself. 
 
The applicant commissioned an engineering report which looked at the constructed deck, the 
riverbank and also produced a drainage scheme which proposes the installation of an attention 
tank to the side of the bungalow with a controlled discharge into the river.  
 
A further concern has been raised by the objector in that there is a possible conflict between 
the proposed attenuation tank and an existing mains drainage system which runs through the 
rear gardens of the properties in the street. South West Water did not respond to the 
consultation via the “weekly list”, possibly because the official mains sewer is shown as running 
through Mount Tavy Road and not to the rear of the dwellings, and have been contacted by 
the Case Officer. SWW have stated they do not object to the application. Whilst it is noted that 
no build over agreement has yet been sought by the applicant, this is a matter for the applicant 
to address with SWW and is not a material planning consideration.  
 
The proposal, subject to a condition requiring the installation of the drainage scheme within 3 
months of any approval, is therefore considered to accord with Policy DEV35 of the JLP. 
 
Tamar Estuaries SAC: 
 

Page 15



The site falls within the Zone of Influence for new residents having a recreational impact on the 
Tamar European Marine Site (comprising the Plymouth Sound and Estuaries SAC and Tamar 
Estuaries Complex SPA). This Zone of Influence has recently been updated as part of  
the evidence base gathering and Duty to Cooperate relating to the Joint Local Plan. A scheme 
to secure mitigation of the additional recreational pressures upon the Tamar European Marine 
Site can be appropriately secured by unilateral undertaking, and this approach has been 
agreed by Natural England.  
 
In this case however the proposal is for an extension to decking only, and not a new residential 
unit and so the impact on the SAC will be neutral as there is no intensification of the use. No 
contribution will be required.  
 
Other matters: 
 
Concerns raised about the inaccuracy of drawings have been addressed through revised plans 
and re-consultation has taken place on these. 
 
The installation of toilets/ensuite bathrooms in the property is not a matter for planning, nor is 
it relevant to this application as it relates only to the decking. 
 
 
Planning Balance 
 
The proposal is minor in nature, located to the rear of the property and not visible from public 
vantage points. 
  
The Conservation Officer has objected to the proposal, however, for the reasons discussed 
above and taking into account the fall-back position for permitted development, the minor 
addition of under 2 m compared to the approved scheme is not considered to result in harm to 
the Conservation Area or World Heritage Site. Conditional approval is therefore recommended. 
 
This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 with Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 
Planning Policy 
 
Relevant policy framework 

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of 
the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  For 
the purposes of decision making, as of March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & South West Devon 
Joint Local Plan 2014 - 2034 is now part of the development plan for Plymouth City Council, 
South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council (other than parts of South Hams 
and West Devon within Dartmoor National Park). 
 

The relevant development plan policies are set out below: 
 
The Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan was adopted by South Hams District 
Council on March 21st 2019 and West Devon Borough Council on March 26th 2019. 
 

Page 16



SPT1 Delivering sustainable development 
SPT2 Sustainable linked neighbourhoods and sustainable rural communities 
DEV1 Protecting health and amenity 
DEV2 Air, water, soil, noise, land and light 
DEV20 Place shaping and the quality of the built environment 
DEV21 Development affecting the historic environment 
DEV22 Cornwall and West Devon Mining Landscape World Heritage Site 
DEV23 Landscape character 
DEV26 Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation 
DEV35 Managing flood risk and Water Quality Impacts  
 
Neighbourhood Plan 
The Tavistock Neighbourhood Plan Is not advanced enough to carry any weight in the decision 
making process. 
 
Other material considerations include the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework  
(NPPF) including but not limited to paragraphs 2, 11, 127,190, 192, 200 and guidance in 
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). Additionally, the following planning documents are also 
material considerations in the determination of the application:  
 

- Tavistock Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan  
- The World Heritage Site Draft Management Plan (currently out for consultation).  

 

Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 
 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into 
account in reaching the recommendation contained in this report. 
 
 
Conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby approved shall in all respects be retained in accordance with 
drawing numbers: 01B Location Plan received on 16.11.2020; 13C Site and Block Plan 
received 17.11.2020; 15A North Elevation and 14B Cross Sections received 16.2.2021.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is carried out in accordance with the 
drawings forming part of the application to which this approval relates.  
 
2. Within 3 months of the date of this permission, a screen of minimum 1.8 metres high shall 
be erected on the western boundary of the decking, in accordance with details which shall first 
be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning authority. Once approved, works 
shall be carried out and retained/maintained as agreed, thereafter. 
 
Reason: To prevent overlooking directly into the garden of the adjoining neighbouring property. 
 
3. Within 3 months of the date of this permission, the drainage scheme as detailed in the report 
by John Grimes dated 9th March and one drawing 16920/201/P2 shall be implemented, unless 
an alternative is first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure surface water is dealt with appropriately to avoid an increase in flood risk 
or destabilisation of the river bank. 
  

Page 17



Informatives: 
 
1. For the avoidance of doubt, this permission relates only to the rear decking and no works to 
the dwelling or front wall/parking area. 

 
2. The applicant is reminded of the need to seek other consents separately to this planning 
approval: Consent to Discharge from the Environment Agency; Flood Risk Activity Permit from 
the Environment Agency; South West Water approval to build over the mains drainage system; 
Building Regulations approval. 

Page 18



 West Devon Borough Council 
 

 PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 20-Apr-21 
 Appeals Update from 5-Mar-21 to 7-Apr-21 
 
 Ward Bere Ferrers 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 0347/20/OPA APP/Q1153/W/20/3264435 
 APPELLANT NAME: MR & MRS JANE AND ROBIN MUSGRAVE 
 PROPOSAL: Outline application with some matters reserved for new dwelling 
 LOCATION: Lower Tavy  Fore Street Bere Ferrers   PL20 7JL Officer member delegated 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 
 APPEAL START DATE: 11-January-2021 
 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 16-March-2021 
 

 Ward Exbourne 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 00600/2015 APP/Q1153/W/20/3255446 
 APPELLANT NAME: Nr & Mrs Roberts and Catherine Venn 
 PROPOSAL: READVERTISEMENT (Revision - second glamping unit to now be a newly 
    constructed unit in an alternative location within the site) Proposed use of two roadman  
 units as holiday accommodation 
 LOCATION: Land Opposite Higher Park  Iddesleigh Devon Devon   Committee 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 
 APPEAL START DATE: 13-January-2021 
 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 23-March-2021 
 

 Ward Milton Ford 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 0784/20/FUL APP/Q1153/W/21/3268291 
 APPELLANT NAME: Ms R Cruise 
 PROPOSAL: Proposed Forest School with small classroom building and 8 no. 
        parking spaces 
 LOCATION: Land Adjacent to Hartwell Barn  Sydenham Damerel     Officer member delegated 
 PL19 8QU 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 
 APPEAL START DATE: 22-March-2021 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 

 APPLICATION NUMBER: 2472/20/OPA APP/Q1153/W/20/3263800 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr R Luxton 
 PROPOSAL: Outline application with all matters reserved for erection of dwelling 
 LOCATION: Land at Whimbarn House  Ottery Tavistock   PL19 8NS Officer member delegated 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 
 APPEAL START DATE: 04-January-2021 
 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 19-March-2021 
 

 Ward Tavistock South East 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 1919/19/VAR APP/Q1153/W/21/3268306 
 APPELLANT NAME: Mr P Gray 
 PROPOSAL: READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans Received) Variation of conditions 1    (plans) and 3  
 (vegetation border) of planning permission 2138/18/FUL  (Erection of 2 dwellings) 
 LOCATION: Land adjacent to Breckland  Down Road Tavistock Devon   Committee 
 PL19 9AG 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 
 APPEAL START DATE: 23-March-2021 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 

 APPLICATION NUMBER: 2068/20/CLE APP/Q1153/X/21/3270453 

 APPELLANT NAME: Mr Rock Lezemore 
 PROPOSAL: Lawful development certificate for existing use of outbuilding as     model railway retail  

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 shop (Class A1) 
 
 LOCATION: Tavyside Models             11a Mount Tavy Road Tavistock    Officer delegated 
 PL19 9JB 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 
 APPEAL START DATE: 16-March-2021 
  
 APPEAL DECISION: 
  
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 

Page 20



 

 
 1 

 
West Devon Planning  12 
 

 Undetermined Major applications as at 7-Apr-21 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2391/19/VAR Nicola Glanville 19-Jul-19 18-Oct-19 20-Jan-21 
 
 5 The Market  Fore Street North Tawton Devon  EX20 2GT Variation of condition 2 of planning consent 13457/2009/OKE to  
 amend 
  boundary line and change pedestrian access into the site 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 3424/19/FUL Jacqueline Houslander 22-Oct-19 21-Jan-20 23-Dec-20 
 
 Field at Sx 453 669, Adjacent to Woolacombe Road   Bere  READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans Received) Application for  
 Alston   PL20 7HH 31no. new    dwellings and associated access road and  
 pedestrian link 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2915/19/FUL Anna Henderson-Smith 18-Dec-19 18-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 
 
 Wool Grading Centre  Fore Street North Tawton    READVERTISEMENT (Revised description and plans received)  
 Conversion ofexisting Grade II listed mill buildings (A and B) into  
 7 open market  townhouses, conversion of building C into 9 open  
 market flats         redevelopment of building D for B1 office use, 4  
 open market dwellingsin G and L and building F restored 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 1618/20/FUL Oliver Gibbins 5-Jun-20 4-Sep-20 24-Mar-21 
 
   Court Cottage Farm Lamerton Tavistock  PL19 8RW READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received) Demolition of  
 redundant farm 
 buildings and erection of 15no. homes (including 4no. affordable)  
 withnew access, parking and car port and new community  
 recreation area 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2847/19/FUL Oliver Gibbins 24-Jun-20 23-Sep-20  
 
 Land North of the Old Rectory  Bratton Clovelly  Erection of 10 houses (including 4 affordable houses for local 
 Okehampton   EX20 4LA        residents); the provision of new access, road and associated          
 landscaping 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2536/20/OPA Claire Boobier 20-Oct-20 19-Jan-21 26-Apr-21 
 
 Land south of Fore Street  Fore Street Lifton   PL16 0BT Outline application for up to 68 dwellings with POS, landscaping  
 and  sustainable drainage system, with vehicular access through  
 the        approved access for the adjacent development  
 (2353/18/OPA) - all      matters reserved except access 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 3652/20/FUL Bryn Kitching 18-Nov-20 17-Feb-21  
 
 Land to the South of Plymouth Road  Tavistock     Hybrid application comprising full planning application for 
           erection of 45 residential dwellings, formation of 
accesses,           
 associated public open space, landscaping and infrastructure;  
 and     outline planning application for extra care facility for up to  
 60     units with all matters reserved, except means of access 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 4073/20/VAR Cheryl Stansbury 14-Dec-20 15-Mar-21  
 
 Hatherleigh Market  Hatherleigh    EX20 3HT Application for variation of conditions 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 17, 18, 19,  
 22,26, 28, 29, 30 and 37 of planning consent 1794/18/FUL to  
 realign road,amend layout and house types 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 0158/21/FUL Anna Henderson-Smith 18-Jan-21 19-Apr-21  
 
 South Hooe Penisula  Tamar Estuary Bere Alston   PL20  The creation of an area of intertidal habitat at South Hooe (Tamar 
 7BW    Banks) and the construction of a new earth bund to facilitate a       
 wetland habitat area, consisting of breaching the existing tidal       
 embankment; the closure of the existing drainage outfall in the        
 embankment; associated drainage outlet to facilitate the wetland      
 habitat area; the formation of two borrow pits to provide site won     
 material for the bund; and the diversion of a small section of track 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 

 
 1 

 4257/20/OPA Paul Rossington 19-Feb-21 21-May-21  
 
 
 Land Opposite Wilminstone Industrial Est at NGR: SX  Outline application with all matters reserved for erection of 10 
 4918 7541  Old Exeter Road Tavistock         dwellings 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 0136/21/ARM Anna Henderson-Smith 19-Feb-21 21-May-21  
 
 Land at SX 603 953  Exeter Road Okehampton    Application for approval of reserved matters following outline 
        approval 0032/18/OPA for 50 No. dwellings, including 40%  
 affordable 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 4183/20/VAR Verity Clark 26-Feb-21 28-May-21  
 
 Land to the rear of Rowan Cottages   Lewdown    Application for variation of condition 12 (drainage details) on 
        approved application 0825/16/FUL 

Page 22


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	5 Planning Applications
	6 Planning Appeals Update
	7 Undetermined Major Applications Report

